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ERICKSEN KRENTELP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

4227 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 70119 

ericksenkrentel.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
Chalmette, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the St. 
Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District (the "District") as of and for the years ended June 30, 
2024 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the business-type activities of the District, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELL„ 
4 I CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
November 18, 2024 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELL„ 
4 I CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
November 18, 2024 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and required supplementary information on pages 5 
through 8 and 40 through 46, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The schedule of compensation, 
benefits, and other payments to agency head is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as 
required by Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513(A)(3) and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and 
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency 
head, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELL„ 
4 I CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
November 18, 2024 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 18, 2024, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the District's internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance. 

November 18, 2024 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

1 (e- -̂ / ¿f 

Certified Public Accountants 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2024  

Our discussion and analysis of the St. Bernard Port Harbor and Terminal District's (the District) 
financial performance provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2024. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model 
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in Statement No. 34 Basic 
Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments issued June 1999. Certain comparative information between the current year and 
the prior year is required to be presented in the MD&A to provide a more meaningful 
comparative analysis of the fmancial data to be presented. 

USING THIS ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
The District's annual financial report consists of fmancial statements that report information 
about the District's most significant activities. 

An outline of the annual financial report's content is as follows: 

I. Independent Auditors' Report 
II. Required Supplementary Information 

III. Basic Financial Statements 
IV. Notes to the Financial Statements 

V. Other Supplemental Information 

Our auditor has provided assurance in their independent auditors' report on pages 1 through 4 
that the basic financial statements are fairly stated. A user of this report should read the 
independent auditors' report carefully to ascertain the level of assurance being provided for each 
of the other parts in the annual financial report. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District's assets and deferred outflows exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows at June 30, 2024 by $97,889,246, which represents an increase 
from last fiscal year of $1,960,679 or 2.04%. 

The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District's intergovernmental revenues decreased 
by $13,013,704 or 77.16% as a result of a decrease in federal grants received and the net loss 
from operations increased by $463,556 or 12.90%. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2024  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The District's net position was approxirnately $97.9 rnillion at June 30, 2024. 

The followinv, analysis focuses on the net position and the change in net position of the District as 
a whole. 

Condensed Staternents of Net Position 

As ofJune 30, 2024 and 2023 

(in thousands) 

 

2024 2023 

Current and other assets $ 33,649 $ 30,724 

Net capital assets 105,084 99,394 

Total assets 138,733 130,118 

Deferred outflows of resources 940 1,388 

Current liabilities 2,094 1,788 

Long-term obligations 23,495 24,856 

Total liabilities 25,589 26,644 

Deferred inflows of resources 16,196 16,331 

Net position: 

  

Net investment in capital assets 87,984 81,304 

Restricted 1,183 6,084 

Unrestricted 8,721 8,539 

Total net position 97 889 95,929 

Restricted net position represents those assets that are not available for spending as a result of 
legislative requirements, loan agreements, or other requirernents. Conversely, unrestricted net 
position consists of those assets that do not have any limitation on what those arnounts rnay be 
used for. 

Net position of the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District increased by $1,960,679 or 
2.04%, during the year ended June 30, 2024. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2024  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

(in thousands) 

 

2024 2023 

Operating revenues $ 6,377 $ 6,813 

Operating expenses (10,435) (10,408) 

Operating loss (4,058) (3,595) 

Non-operating revenues 2,291 2,725 

Capital contributions 3,727 16,741 

Net increase in fund net position 1,960 15,871 

Net position - beginning of year 95,929 80,058 

Net position - end of year $ 97 889 $95,929 

The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District's total operating revenues decreased 
$435,645 or 6.39%. The total operating expenses increased by $27,911 or 0.27%. Operating 
revenues decreased primarily due to decreased lease revenue. Operating expenses increase was 
insignificant. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

At June 30, 2024, the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District had net capital assets of 
$105,084,451, net of accurnulated depreciation of $92,080,416, including land, buildings and 
improvements, dock, barge and marina facilities, furniture and equipment, and constniction in 
progress. This arnount represents a net increase of $5,690,142, which was primarily attributable 
to current year construction in progress offset by depreciation expense. 

Capital Assets at June 30, 2024 and 2023 

(Net of Depreciation, in thousands) 

 

2024 2023 

Land $ 14,541 $ 14,442 

Dock and barge facilities 28,358 29,987 

Buildinp and improvements 21,315 22,973 

Furniture and equipment 159 138 

Constniction in progess 40,711 31,854 

Totals $ 105,084 $ 99,394 

7 



ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2024  

LONG TERM DEBT 

At June 30, 2024, the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District had $17,100,000 of general 
obligation bonds outstanding. Principal payments of $990,000 were rnade during the year. More 
detailed information regrading long-term debt is presented in the notes to the basic financial 
statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District's appointed officials considered the 
following factors and indicators when setting next year's budget, rates, and fees. These factors 
and indicators include: 

• The District's industrial park is currently at 95% occupancy of its developed rental 
portfolio and all major facilities are leased. The District's marine facility has a 100% 
occupancy rate. 

• The Chalmette Slip renovation project is in its final stages. This $38 rnillion plus project 
will increase tonnage capacity while enhancing safety and efficiency. This will help the 
District continue to rernain cornpetitive. Construction on this rnulti-year project is 
scheduled to be completed by October 2024. 

• The District had 353 ship calls and handled 6.8 rnillion tons of cargo in FY 2024. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and 
creditors with a general overview of the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terrninal District's 
finances and to show the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District's accountability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial 
inforrnation, contact Drew Heaphy, Executive Director, P. O. Box 1331, Chalmette, Louisiana 
70044. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

 

2024 2023 
ASSETS: 

  

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,537,467 $ 13,115,458 
Accounts receivable 238,668 705,339 
Prepaid expenses 1,012,904 998,697 
Due from other governrnental units 95,302 1,482,728 
Lease receivables 2,646,481 2,606,780 

Total current assets 19,530,822 18,909,002 

RESTRIC l'ED ASSETS: 

  

Cash - employee savings 27,695 15,142 
Cash equivalents - construction and loan payments 1,155,117 6,069,700 

Total restricted assets 1,182,812 6,084,842 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 

  

Lease assets 1,185,663 1,189,354 

Lease receivables net of current portion 11,749,492 11,938,439 

 

12,935,155 13,127,793 

CAPITAL ASSETS: 

  

Land 14,541,452 14,441,597 
Dock and barge facilities 84,710,180 84,216,529 
Buildin and improvements 54,459,158 54,324,164 
Furniture and equiprnent 2,743,247 2,793,025 

 

156,454,037 155,775,315 

Less accumulated depreciation 92,080,416 88,235,686 

 

64,373,621 67,539,629 

Construction in prop-ess 40,710,830 31,854,680 

Net capital assets 105,084,451 99,394,309 

TOTAL ASSETS 138,733,240 137,515,946 

   

DEFERRED OU I BLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 648,356 1,048,652 
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 292,112 339,091 

TOTAL DEFERRED OU II-LOWS 940,468 1,387,743 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OU11- LOWS $ 139,673,708 $ 138,903,689 

See accompanying notes. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

 

2024 2023 
LIABILITIES: 

  

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable $ 786,667 $ 515,606 

Due to ernployees - savings 27,695 15,142 
Accrued interest payable 141,617 149,786 

Lease liability 122,864 117,380 
Bonds payable - current 1,015,000 990,000 

Total current liabilities 2,093,843 1,787,914 

LONG- I ERM OBLIGATIONS: 

  

Compensated absences 453,721 436,250 
Lease liability net of current portion 1,062,799 1,092,529 

Bonds payable - noncurrent 16,085,000 17,100,000 
Other posternployment benefits 2,113,334 1,926,108 
Net pension liability 3,780,170 4,301,417 

Total long-term obligations 23,495,024 24,856,304 

Total liabilities 25,588,867 26,644,218 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

  

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 263,505 491,207 
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 910,488 1,294,478 

Unearned revenue 625,629 

 

Deferred leases 14,395,973 14,545,219 

Total deferred inflows of resources 16,195,595 16,330,904 

NET POSITION: 

  

Net investment in capital assets 87,984,451 81,304,309 
Restricted for: 

  

Debt service 1,155,117 6,069,700 
Other purposes 27,695 15,142 

Unrestricted 8,721,983 8,539,416 

Total net position 97,889,246 95,928,567 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

  

AND NET POSITION $ 139,673,708 $ 138,903,689 

See accompanying notes. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

 

2024 2023 
OPERATING REVENUES: 

  

Lease revenues $ 5,988,560 $ 6,326,718 
Other fees and perrnits 388,767 486,254 

Total operating revenues 6,377,327 6,812,972 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

  

Personal services 2,201,975 2,106,308 
Supplies and materials 64,803 300,452 

Other services and charges 2,210,235 2,001,601 
Promotion and marketing 162,430 150,956 
Professional services 931,793 892,608 
Amortization and depreciation 4,864,212 4,955,612 

Total operating expenses 10,435,448 10,407,537 

Operating loss (4,058,121) (3,594,565) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

  

Taxes - ad valorem 1,739,213 1,513,540 

Loss on disposal of capital assets (25,239) 

 

Interest earned 1,058,152 619,882 

Interest expense on long-terrn debt (524,316) (595,619) 
Miscellaneous expense (367,739) (1,090,464) 
Miscellaneous revenue 332,117 2,236,882 
Intergovernmental revenues 125,000 125,000 
Expropriation legal expenses (45,719) (85,178) 

Total non-operating revenues 2,291,469 2,724,043 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS: 

  

Intergovernmental revenues 3,727,331 16,741 035 

Change in fund net position 1,960,679 15,870,513 

Net position - Beginning of year 95,928,567 80,058,054 

Net position - End of year $ 97,889,246 $ 95,928,567 

See accompanying notes. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

 

2024 2023 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

  

Cash received for services $ 6,250,530 $ 5,418,412 
Cash paid for goods and services (3,132,962) (4,069,527) 
Payrnents for salaries and related expenses (2,682,942) (2,348,220) 

Net cash provided (used by) by operating activities 434,626 (999,335) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 

  

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

  

Ad valorem tax receipts 1,737,838 1,519,001 
Expropriation legal fees (45,719) (85,178) 
State revenue sharing 125,000 125,000 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 1,817,119 1,558,823 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 

  

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

  

Federal and state funds 5,116,131 18,137,015 
Grant administrative expenses (367,739) (1,090,464) 
Interest paid on loans (532,485) (552,277) 
Principal payrnents on loans (990,000) (2,641,737) 
Proceeds from insurance 332,117 2,236,882 
Purchases of capital assets (9,347,942) (8,846,029) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities (5,789,918) 7,243,390 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

  

Interest earned 1,058,152 619,882 

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,058,152 619,882 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,480,021) 8,422,760 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 19,200,300 10,777,540 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 16,720,279 $ 19,200,300 

(Continued) 

  

See accornpanying notes. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

 

2024 2023 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET 

  

CASH FROM (USED BY) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operatine, loss (4,058,121) $ (3,594,565) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 
net cash used by operating activities: 

  

Amortization and depreciation expense 4,864,212 4,955,612 
DefelTed rent abated (593,468) (810,000) 
Changes in net assets and liabilities: 

  

Accounts receivable 466,671 (584,560) 
Prepaid expenses (14,207) (170,087) 
Lease asset 3,691 

 

Lease receivables 149,246 244,882 
Accounts payable 271,061 (440,678) 
Compensated absences 17,471 6,594 
Change in lease liability (24,246) (113,145) 
Change in net pension liability (521,247) 570,547 
Change in pension deferred inflows/outflows 172,594 (695,355) 
Change in OPEB deferred inflows/outflows (337,011) 1,291,204 
Change in lease deferred inflows/outflows (149,246) (244,882) 
Change in OPEB liability 187,226 (1,414,902) 

Net cash from (used by) operating activities 434,626 $ (999,335) 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH 

  

EQUIVALENTS TO STA I'LMENT OF NET ASSETS: 

  

Cash and cash equivalents - current assets $ 15,537,467 $ 13,115,458 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets 1,182,812 6,084,842 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 16,720,279 $ 19,200,300 

See accompanying notes. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District (the District) was created as a public 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Louisiana under Louisiana Revised Statute 
34:1701-1714. The District is governed by a Board of Cornrnissioners consisting of five rnernbers 
appointed by the Governor upon the recornrnendation of a rnajority of the Legislative delegation 
from St. Bernard Parish. The Board has the power to regulate the commerce and traffic of the 
District in such a manner as may be best for the public interest; and it is empowered to own and 
have charge of, to adrninister, construct, operate, and rnaintain wharves, warehouses, landings, 
docks, sheds, belt and connection railroads, shipways, canals, channels, slips, basins, locks, 
elevators, and other structures and facilities necessary and proper for the use and development of 
the business of the District. 

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial staternents have been prepared on the full accnial basis in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The Governrnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing, governrnental accounting principles and reporting 
standards. 

Proprietary fund financial staternents include a statement of net position; a staternent of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in fiind net position; and a staternent of cash flows. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "econornic resources" measurement focus 
and the accnial basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities (whether cunent or noncurrent), and defened inflows of resources 
are included on the staternent of net position. The staternent of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in fund net position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in 
total net position. Under the accnial basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the 
period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing, of related cash flows. 

Reporting Entity 

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 as amended by 
GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, (711 amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 34, has established criteria for deterrnining the governmental reporting 
entity and cornponent units that should be included within the reporting entity and other 
reporting relationships. The basic criterion for including a potential cornponent unit within 
the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be 
considered in determining financial accountability. The criteria include: 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

SUMNIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1. Appointment of a voting majority of the governing board 

a. The ability of the reporting entity to irnpose its will on the organization 
b. The potential of the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 

impose specific financial burdens on the reporting entity 

2. Organizations which are fiscally dependent 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity's financial staternents would be 
rnisleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or 
significance of the relationship 

The District is considered a related organization of the State of Louisiana. Although the 
Governor appoints the governing board, the state does not have a fmancial benefit or 
burden relationship with the District. Because the state does not have financial 
accountability for the District, the District is excluded from the reporting entity of the state. 
The nature of the state's relationship with the District is disclosed in the state's audited 
financial staternents. 

The accompanying financial staternents present information only on the funds rnaintained 
by the District. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the staternent of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include demand 
deposits and rnoney market funds. 

Accounts Receivable 

The District uses the direct write-off rnethod to rernove uncollectible accounts receivable. 
This rnethod approxirnates the allowance method required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Capital Assets 

All purchased capital assets are valued at cost. Depreciation of these assets is cornputed on 
the straight-line rnethod over the estirnated usefiil lives of the assets. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(1) SUMNIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Restricted Assets 

Certain cash and cash equivalents to be used for planned construction and for the 
repayment of loans payable are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net 
position because their use is lirnited by applicable loan covenants. 

Cash held for ernployee savings is restricted until the cash is remitted to the ernployee. 

Compensated Absences 

Accurnulated vacation and sick leave is accnied as an expense of the period in which 
incurred. Administrative ernployees earn from 12 to 24 days of vacation and sick leave 
each year depending on length of service with the District. Accumulation of vacation 
leave is lirnited to 60 days per ernployee. Accurnulation of sick leave is lirnited to 25 days 
per ernployee. Upon terrnination of employment, unused vacation and sick leave will be 
paid to ernployees at the employee's current rate of pay. 

Revenues and Expenses: 

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from 
the ongoing principal operations of the District. Operating revenues primarily consist of 
lease revenues including the leasing of land and improvements under cancelable operating 
leases. The leases are accounted for using the operating rnethod whereby the amount of 
revenue recognized in each accounting period is equivalent to the amount of rent receivable 
according to the provisions of the lease. Improvements to the Districfs facilities paid for by 
lessees are recorded at fair value as they are made and are as reported as increases to capital 
assets and deferred inflows of resources. The revenue is recognized over the terrns of the 
operating leases. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and 
expenses that are related to financing and investing types of activities and result frorn non-
exchange transactions. When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted 
and unrestricted net assets are available, restricted resources are applied first. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(1) SUMNIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position of the defined benefit 
pension plans in which the District participates have been deterrnined on the same basis 
as they are reported by the respective defined benefit pension plans. For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of ernployee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit tenns. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statements of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources that represents a consumption of net position that applies to future 
period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The 
District has two items that qualify for reporting in this categoiy, which are amounts 
related to pensions and amounts related to other postemployment benefits. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statements of Net Position reports a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources that represents an acquisition of net position that applies to 
future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. The District has three items that meet the criterion for this categoiy, deferred 
amounts related to unearned income, deferred arnounts related to pensions, and deferred 
arnounts related to other postemployrnent benefits. 

(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District has cash bank and book balances as follows: 

2024 2023  
Bank Book Bank Book 

Balance Balance Balance Bahnce 
Demand deposits $ 27,695 $ 27,695 $ 25,617 $ 15,142 

Cash equivalents 16,895,085 16,692,584 19,388,277 19,185,158 

 

$ 16,922,780 $ 16,720,279 $ 19,413,894 $ 19,200,300 

Custodial credit risk is risk, that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits might 
not be returned to it. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District's dernand deposits (bank 
balances) were fully insured. 

All cash equivalents are carried at fair value. The following is a detail of the cash 
equivalents at June 30, 2024 and 2023: 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 

2024 2023 

Government pooled investrnents - held 

by the Louisiana Asset Managenvnt 

  

Pool (LAMP) in the narne of the District $ 4,322,536 $ 4,098,310 

Federated Investors Government Obligations 

  

Money Market Fund - held by an agent of 

Gulf Coast Bank in the name of the bank 12,369,546 15,086,735 

Restricted U.S. Treasiuy rnoney market 

fiinds managed by the trustee and held by 

the trustee in the naine of the District 502 113 

Total cash equivalents $ 16,692,584 $ 19,185,158 

Concentration of credit risk relates to the amount of investments in any one entity. At June 
30, 2024 and 2023, the District had no cash equivalents invested in any one entity which 
exceeded 5% of total cash equivalents, except for the above rnoney rnarket fiinds. 

Statutes authorize the District to invest in direct United States Treasuiy obligations, the 
principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the government of the United States; 
bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal 
agencies, provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the United 
States of Arnerica; bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or 
guaranteed by U.S. Government instrurnentalities, which are federally sponsored; mutual or 
trust fiind institutions which are registered with the Securities and Exchange Cornrnission 
under the Seciuities Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940, and which have 
underlying investments consisting solely of and limited to sectuities of the United States or 
its agencies; and certain guaranteed investrnent contracts. 

LAMP is adrninistered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws 
of the State of Louisiana. Only local government entities having been contracted to 
participate in LAMP have an investrnent interest in its pool of assets. The prirnary objective 
of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public fiinds in short-terrn, 
high-quality investrnents. The LAMP portfolio includes only secuiities and other 
obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance 
with Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955. LAMP is rated AAA by Standard & Poor's. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(3) INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND RECEIVABLES 

Intergovemmental revenues for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the 
following: 

 

-41-)4 2(1)3 
Non-operating: 

  

State of Louisiana revenue sharing $ 125,000 $ 125,000 
Capital contnbutions: 

  

State and federal punts 3,727,331 16,741,035 
Total intergovernmental revenues $ 3,852,331  $16,866,035 

Amounts due frorn other governmental units consisted of the following at June 30, 2024 
and 2023: 

 

2024 2023 
Federal Emergency Management Agency 

 

70,445 

State of Louisiana 89,870 980,777 
MARAD 

 

427,448 
St. Bernard Parish Tax Collector 5,432 4,058 

Total intergovernmental receivables 95,302 $ 1,482,728 

(4) CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets and depreciation for the years ended June 30, 2024 
and 2023 were as follows: 

2024 
Balance 

June 30, 2023 Additions Retirements 
Balance 

June 30, 2024 

Land $ 14,441,597 $ 99,855 $ $ 14,541,452 

Dock and barge thcilities 84,216,529 1,427,4(10 (933,749) 84,710,180 
Buildings and improvements 54,324,164 134,994 

 

54,459,158 

Furniture and equipment 2,793,025 61,182 (110,960)  2,743,247 

Constniction iii progress 31,854,680 8,930,450 (74,300) 40,710,830 

Tota Is $ 187,629,995 $ 10,653,881 $ (1,119,0(19) $ 197,164,867 

Accumulated Accumulated 
Depreciation Depreciation 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2023 Additions Retirements June 30, 2024 

$ 54,229,798 $ 3,030,829 (908,510) 
31,351,237 1,792,776 

2,654,651 40,607 (1 10,972) 
$ 88,235,686 $ 4,864,212 $ (1,019,4)t2) $ 92,080,416 

2024  

Dock and barge thcilities 
Buildings and improvements 

Furniture and equipment 
Tota ls 

$ 56,352,117 
33,144,013 
2.584,286 

19 



ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(4) CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

2023 
Balance 

Jinie 30, 2022 Additions Retirements 
Balance 

Jute 30, 2023 

Land $ 14,454,102 669.700 S (682,205) S 14,441,597 

Dock and barge facilities 84,058,071 158.458 

 

84,216,529 

Buildings and inwovements 54,324.164 

  

54.324.164 

F urnirure a nd equip me nt 2,749.108 43,917 

 

2.793.025 

Constmction in progress 23,198.521 8,656,159 

 

31.854.680 

Tota Is $ 178,783,966 $ 9,528,234 (682.205) S 187,629,995 

 

Acctunulated 

  

Accumulated 

 

Depreciation 

  

Depreciation 

 

Balance 

  

Balance 
2023 Jinie 30, 2022 Additions Retirements Jute 30, 2023 

Dock and barge thcilities $ 51,265,907 $ 2,963,891 s $ 54.229.798 

Buildings and improvements 29,533,076 1,818,161 

 

31.351.237 

Furniture and equipment 2,614,791 39.860 

 

2,654,651 

Totals $ 83,413,774 4.821.912 

 

S 88,235,686 

Depreciation expense amounted to $4 864,212 and $4,821,912 for the years ended June 
30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, approximately $12,000,000 of the dock 
and barge facilities balance and $4,000,000 of the land balance was related to the 
expropriation of 71 acres of land and port facilities in Violet, Louisiana. The District was 
involved in legal proceedings following the expropriation. See Note 13 for further 
information. 

(5) GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

BONDS PAYABLE 

On Januaiy 22, 2020, the District entered into a loan agreement with the Louisiana Local 
Govenunent Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority (the 
Authority). Under the ain-eement, the Authority issued $2,870,000 of Series 2020A 
Refunding Bonds and $4,185,000 of Series 2020B Refunding Bonds and $6,895,000 of 
Series 2020C Tax-exempt Revenue Bonds and loaned the proceeds to the District. 

The 2020A, 2020B, and 2020C bonds were issued to provide funds to enable the District to 
pay off prior existing debt and finance additional facilities and improvements. The 
proceeds of the bonds were also used to pay off the outstanding debt of the District related 
to the 2014A, 2014B and 2010C loans frorn the Authority. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(5) GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

BONDS PAYABLE (continued) 

Under the loan agreement with the Authority, the District is required to repay the loan by 
rnaking the debt service payments, including principal, interest and reserve requirements 
for the Authority's three bond issues. The 2020A and 2020B bonds have stated interest 
rates of 2.43% each and the 2020C bond has a stated interest rate of 2.58%. The bonds 
mature on March 1, 2034, March 31, 2034, and March 31, 2039, respectively. Interest and 
principal is payable March 1" and interest only is payable September of each year, 
commencing March 1, 2020. 

The following is a summary of loan payable transactions for the years ended June 30, 2024 
and 2023: 

2024 
Descnption 

Balance 
June 30, 2023 

 

Additions Reductions 
Balance 

June 30, 2024 
Due Within 
One Year 

2020A S 2,185,00(1 $ - $ (175,000) $ 2,010,000 $ 180,000 
2020B 3,180,000 

 

- (255,000) 2,925,000 260,000 
2020C 6,015,00(1 

 

- (310,000) 5,71)5,1)1)1) 315,00(1 
2022 6,710,000 

 

- (250,000) 6,460,1)1)1) 260,000 

 

S 18,090,000 

 

- $ )990,000) S 17,100,001) $ 1,015,000 

2023 
Description 

Balance 
June 30, 2022 Additions Reductions 

Balance 
June 30, 2023 

Due With ) 
One Year 

2020A $ 2,355,000 $ - S (170,000) S 2,185,001) $ 175,000 
2020B 3,430,000 - (250,00(I) 3,180,000 255,000 
2020C 6,315,000 - (300,00(I) 6,015,000 310,000 
2022 7,000,000 

 

(290,00(1) 6,710,000 250,000 

 

$ 19,100,000 $ $ (1,010,000) $ 18,090,000 $ 990,000 

The annual principal and interest payments on the loans outstanding at June 30, 2024 are 
scheduled to occur as follows: 

Year Ended Principal Interest 
June 30 Payments Payments Total 

2025 $ 1,015,000 $ 504,838 $ 1,519,838 
2026 1,045,000 476,451 1,521,451 
2027 1,080,000 447,195 1,527,195 
2028 1,105,000 416,948 1,521,948 
2029 1,140,000 385,962 1,525,962 

2030-2034 6,175,000 1,431,864 7,606,864 
2035-2039 4,150,000 651,070 4,801,070 
2040-2042 1,390,000 103,592 1,493,592 

 

$17,100,000 $ 4,417,920 $21,517,920 

Interest expense paid on the loans during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, was 
$549,555 and $554,356, respectively. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(5) GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a sumrnaiy of changes in other long-term obligations for the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

June 30, 2023 Additions Reductions Jtine 30, 2024 One Year 

Compensated 

absences S 436,250 17,471 S 453,721 $ 

Bahnce Balance Due Within 

June 30, 2022 Additions Reductions Jtuie 30, 2023 One Year 

Compensated 

absences S 429,656 $ 6,594    $ 436,250             

(6) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Substantially all District ernployees becorne eligible for postemployrnent health care and 
life insurance benefits if they reach normal retirernent age while working for the District. 
The benefits for retirees are sirnilar benefits for active employees whose premiums are 
paid jointly by the employee and the District. Below is a schedule of active employees, 
entitled to future benefits, and retired ernployees, currently receiving benefits, for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. 

 

2024 2023 

 

Active ernployees 29 29 

Retired employees 4 6 

 

33 35 

Plan Description 

The District's employees may participate in the State of Louisiana's Other 
Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), an agent multiple-ernployer defined benefit 
OPEB Plan that provides medical and life insurance to eligible active employees, retirees, 
and their beneficiaries. The state administers the plan through the Office of Group 
Benefits (OGB). LRS 42:801-883 assigns the authority to establish and arnend benefit 
provisions of the plan. No assets are accunnilated in a trust that rneets the criteria in 
paragraph 4 of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75 to 
pay related benefits. The Office of Group Benefits does not issue a publicly available 
financial report of the OPEB Plan; however, it is included in the State of Louisiana 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(6) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Benefits Provided 

The OPEB Plan provides benefits such as death benefits, life insurance, disability, and 
long-tenn care that are paid in the period after ernployrnent and that are provided 
separately frorn a pension plan, as well as healthcare benefits paid in the period after 
ernployrnent. The OPEB plan does not provide terrnination benefits or terrnination 
payrnents for sick leave. 

ColltrlllutlollS 

The contribution requirernents of plan rnernbers and the District are established and rnay 
be amended by LRS 42:801-883. The OPEB Plan is currently funded on a pay-as-you-go 
basis through a combination of retiree and District contributions. Employees do not 
contribute to their postemployment benefits cost until they become retirees and begin 
receiving post-ernployment benefits. The retirees contribute to the cost of their 
posternployment benefits based on a service schedule. Contribution arnounts vary 
depending on what healthcare provider is selected from the plan and if the member has 
Medicare coverage. 

Employee premiums for these benefits totaled $16,274 and $14,883 for the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively. Ernployer contributions to the OPEB Plan from the 
District were $49,289 and $51,568 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 

Ernployer contributions are based on plan premiums and the employer contribution 
percentage. This percentage is based on the date of participation in an OGB plan (before 
or after January 1, 2002) and ernployee years of service at retirement. Employees who 
began participation or rejoined the plan before January 1, 2002, pay approxirnately 25% 
of the cost of coverage (except single retirees under age 65 who pay approximately 25% 
of the active employee cost). For those beginning participation or rejoining on or after 
January 1, 2002, the percentage of premiums contributed by the employer is based on the 
following schedule: 

OGB Retiree State 
Participation Share Share 

Under 10 years 81% 19% 
10-14 years 62% 38% 

15-19 years 44% 56% 
20+ years 25% 75% 

The District paid approxirnately 75% of health care premiums for all retirees. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(6) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

In addition to healthcare benefits, retirees may elect to receive life insurance benefits. 
Basic and supplernental life insurance is available for the individual retiree and spouses of 
retirees, subject to rnaxirnurn values. The retiree pays $.54 rnonthly for each $1,000 of life 
insurance. The retiree pays $.98 monthly for each $1,000 of spouse life insurance. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflow of Resources Related to OPEB  

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District reported a total OPEB liability of $2,113,334 and 
$1,926,108, respectively. The total OPEB liability was measured as of July 1, and was 
deterrnined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized OPEB benefit of 
$116,496 and $122,736, respectively. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources: 

2024 Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflow°s of 
Resources Resources 

Changes in assumptions S 195,433 S 593,983 
Difference between expected ancl actual experience 47,390 316,505 
Employer contribut ons subsequent to tlie measurement date 49.289 

Total 1; 292,112 1; 910,488 

2023 Deferi-ed De feiTed 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources  

Changes in assumptions $ 190,889 $ 872,061 
Difference between expected and actual experience 96.634 422,417 

Employer contribut ons subsequent to the ineasurenient date 51,568 
Total $ 339.091 $1,294,478 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from ernployer contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date of $51,568 will be recognized as a reduction of the 
total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. Other arnounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense (benefit) as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Amount 

2025 $ (202,928) 
2026 (238,806) 
20'77 (240,468) 

2028 14,537 

 

$ (667.665) 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(6) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.40% 
Salary Increases Consistent with the pension valuation assurnptions 

Investment Rate of Return 4.13%, based on the S&P Municipal Bond 20-Year 
High Grade Rate Index 

Healthcare Cost Trend 
Mortality Rates 

7.00% - 4.5% 
For healthy lives the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy 
Mortality Table, projected on a fully generational 
basis by Mortality Irnprovement Scale MP-2018. 
For existing disabled lives, the RP-2000 Disabled 
Retiree Mortality Table, not projected with mortality 
irnprovement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2023 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.13%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions frorn employers 
will be made at contractually required rates. Based on this assumption and as the OPEB 
Plan is unfunded, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was not projected to be available 
to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive ernployees. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was 
determined using a discount rate that reflects the 20-year tax-exernpt municipal bond yield 
or index rate. 

The discount rate used to rneasure the total OPEB liability was increased to 4.13% in the 
July 1, 2023 valuation frorn 4.09% as of July 1, 2022. The discount rate in the current 
valuation reflects the S&P Municipal Bond 20-Year Index Rate. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(6) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivitv of the District's OPEB Liabilitv to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the District's total OPEB liability, as well as what the District's 
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated usinv, a discount rate that is 1% lower 
(3.13%) or 1% higher (5.13%) than the current discount rate: 

4.13% 

3.13% Current 5.13% 

1.00% Decrease Discount Rate 1.00% Increase 

District's total OPEB liability $ 2,559,374 $ 2,113,334 $1,768,631  

Sensitivity of the District's OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend 
Rates 

The following presents the District's total OPEB liability, as well as what the District's 
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that 
are 1% lower or 1% higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

District's total OPEB liability 

Payables to the OPEB Plan 

7.00% 

6.00% CulTent 8.00% 
1.00% Decrease Trend Rate 1.00% Increase  
$ 1,746,887 $ 2,113,334 $ 2,595,112  

As of June 30, 2024, the District reported no payables for outstanding contributions to the 
OPEB plan required for the year then ended. 

(7) LEASE EXPENSE 

The District leases various equipment and property for use in its operations. The District 
reports lease assets on assets that convey control to the use of the District's nonfinancial 
assets and exist for a maximum term of greater than 12 rnonths. The lease assets are 
recognized at the commencement of the lease at the present value of the lease payments 
expected to be paid during the lease period. Management has determined that a discount 
rate of 3.68c.'/O applies broadly to its leases. Lease payrnents are subject to CPI and fair 
market value adjustment, depending on the term of the lease and tenant renewal options. 
These variable payments are reflected in the lease liability when rerneasurernent occurs. 
Total lease assets net of accurnulated arnortization arnounted to $1,185,663 and $1,189,354 
at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(7) LEASE EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

Estimated future minimum lease payrnents as ofJune 30, 2024 are as follows: 

 

Present Vakie 
of Payments Interest 

Future Minimum 

Payments 
2025 $ 122,864 $ 41,574 $ 164,438 

2026 127,463 36,975 164,438 

2027 137,029 32,125 169,154 
2028 130,483 27,014 157,497 

2029 75,912 23,304 99,216 

2030-2034 440,097 70,887 510,984 
2(135-2039 151,815 4,461 156,276 

 

$ 1,185,663 $ 236,340 1,422,003 

(8) LEASE REVENUES 

The District leases property and buildings located at the Chalmette and Arabi terminals 
and other sites within St. Bernard Parish and dock and barge facilities located at the 
Chalmette Slip to various businesses. Total rents arnounted to $5,988,560 and $6,326,718 
for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, includinv, $868,335 and 
$962,836 of interest on long-term leases. The District reports lease receivables on leases 
that convey control to the use of the District's nonfmancial assets and exist for a 
maximum term of greater than 12 rnonths. The lease receivables are recognized at the 
commencement of the lease term at the present value of the lease payments expected to 
be received during the lease period. Managernent has deterrnined that a discount rate of 
3.68% applies broadly to its leases. Lease payments are subject to CPI and fair market 
value adjustrnents, depending on the terrn of the lease and tenant renewal options. These 
variable payrnents are reflected in the lease receivable value when rerneasurement occurs. 

Future rninirnurn payrnents to be received under these leases as of June 30, 2024 are as 
follows: 

 

Present Value 
of Payments Interest 

Future Minimum 
Payments 

2025 $ 2,646,481 $ 770,874 $ 3,417,355 
2026 2,662,811 673,019 3,335,830 
2027 2,763,022 572,807 3,335,829 
2028 2,806,364 469,844 3,276,208 
2029 2,911,978 364,231 3,276,209 

2034 - 2038 404,677 81,323 486,000 
2039 - 2043 200,640 1,860 202,500 

 

$ 14,395,973 $ 2,933,958 17,329,931 
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(8) LEASE REVENUES (CONTINUED)  

The carrying value of leased property as ofJune 30, 2024 and 2023 was as follows: 

2024 Cost 

Accumulated 

Depreciation 

C arrying 

Value 

Land $ 14,541,452 $ $ 14,541,452 

Dock and barge facilities 84,710,180 (56,352,117) 28,358,063 

Buildings and irnprovements 54,459,158 (33,144,013) 21,315,145 

 

$ 153,710,790 $ (89,496,130) $ 64,214,660 

  

Accumulated Carrying 

2023 Cost Depreciation Value 

Land $ 14,441,597 $ - $ 14,441,597 

Dock and barge facilities 84,216,529 (54,229,798) 29,986,731 

Buildings and improvernents 54,324,164 (31,351,237) 22,972,927 

 

$ 152,982,290 $ (85,581,035) $ 67,401,255 

(9) AD VALOREM TAXES 

Property taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, become due on November 15 of each 
year and become delinquent on December 31. Property taxes are levied on the assessed 
value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real property, merchandise and movable 
property located in the District. Assessed values are established by the St. Bernard Parish 
Assessor's Office and the State Tax Commission at percentages of actual value as specified 
by Louisiana law. The assessed value upon which the 2024 levy was based was 
$515,627,978 with homestead exemptions of $214,840,638. The assessed value upon 
which the 2023 levy was based was $457,156,048 with homestead exernptions of 
$74,412,723. 

The District is pennitted by Article 7, Section 23 of the 1974 Constitution and Act 228 of 
1960 of the State of Louisiana to levy taxes up to $5.00 per $1,000 of assessed valuation on 
property within the District to defray their administrative, operative, and maintenance 
expenditures. Taxes were levied to finance expenses at a rate of $3.81 per $1,000 for the 
2024 and 2023 levies, respectively. 

Ad valorern taxes are generally collected in December of the current year and January and 
February of the ensuing year. Current tax collections for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 
2023 were 99.85% and 99.42%, respectively, of the tax levies. 

As required by State of Louisiana statutes, prescribed deductions are rnade frorn the 
District's property tax receipts to cover contributions to various pension funds. The 
deductions for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $53,368 and $47,096, 
respectively. 
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(10) PENSION PLAN 

Plan Descriptions 

Employees of the District are provided with pensions through a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit plan administered by the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement 
System (LASERS). Section 401 of Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 
11:401) grants to LASERS Board of Trustees and the Louisiana Legislature the authority to 
review administration, benefit terms, investments, and funding of the plan. LASERS issues 
a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.lasersonline.org. 

Benefits Provided 

LASERS provides retirement, deferred retirement option (DROP), disability, and 
survivor's benefits. The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member 
to retire with full benefits vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job 
classification. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2006 are eligible to retire at age 60 with 10 
years of accredited service or 30 years of creditable service regardless of age. Employees 
hired between July 1, 2006 and June 30, 2015 are eligible to retire at age 60 with five years 
of accredited service. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2015 are eligible to retire at age 
62 with five years of accredited service. Additionally, members may choose to retire with 
20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

The basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% of average 
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service. Average 
compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for the 
highest 36 consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 
2006. For members hired July 1, 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the 
member's average annual earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of 
employment. 

The maximum annual retirement benefit cannot exceed the lesser of 100% of average 
compensation or a certain specified dollar amount of actuarially determined monetary 
limits, which vary depending upon the member's age at retirement. Judges, court officers, 
and certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal to 1.0% 
of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in their 
respective capacity. 
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(10) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Benefits Provided (Continued) 

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session changed the benefit structure 
for LASERS members hired on or after January 1, 2011. This resulted in three new plans: 
regular, hazardous duty, and judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and 
those members who were formerly eligible to participate in specialty plans, excluding 
hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and judges are eligible to retire at age 60 
after five years of creditable service and may also retire at any age, with a reduced 
benefit, after 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous duty members are eligible to retire 
with 12 years of creditable service at age 55, 25 years of creditable service at any age or 
with a reduced benefit after 20 years of creditable service. Average compensation will be 
based on the member's average annual earned compensation for the highest 60 
consecutive months of employment for all three new plans. Members in the regular plan 
will receive a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual rate, and judges a 
3.5% accrual rate. The extra 1.0% accrual rate for each year of service for court officers, 
the governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk, sergeants at arms, or Senate 
secretary, employed after January 1, 2011, was eliminated by Act 992. Specialty plan and 
regular members, hired prior to January 1, 2011, who are hazardous duty employees have 
the option to transition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option 
Plan (DROP). When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to 
retiree even though they continue to work and draw their salary for a period of up to three 
years. The election is irrevocable once participation begins. During DROP participation, 
accumulated retirement benefits that would have been paid to each retiree are separately 
tracked. 

For members who entered DROP prior to January 1, 2004, interest at a rate of .5% less 
than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero) will be credited 
to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose among 
available alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the DROP 
account. Members who enter DROP on or after January 1, 2004, are required to 
participate in LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party 
provider. The SDP allows DROP participants to choose from a menu of investment 
options for the allocation of their DROP balances. Participants may diversify their 
investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds with different holdings, 
management styles, and risk factors. 
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(10) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Benefits Provided (Continued) 

Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to 
receive at the time of retirement an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 36 
months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. For members who 
selected the IBO option prior to January 1, 2004, such amount may be withdrawn or 
remain in the IBO account earning interest at a rate of .5% less than the System's realized 
return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those members who select the IBO on or 
after January 1, 2004, are required to enter the SDP as described above. 

Active members with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled may 
receive a maximum disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement 
formula without reduction by reason of age. Upon reaching age 60, the disability retiree 
may receive a regular retirement benefit by making application to the Board of Trustees. 

Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's 
compensation and their relationship to the deceased. The deceased regular member hired 
before January 1, 2011 who was in state service at the time of death must have a 
minimum of five years of service credit, at least two of which were earned immediately 
prior to death, or who had a minimum of 20 years of service credit regardless of when 
earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are 
payable to an unmarried child until age 18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-time 
student. The aforementioned minimum service credit requirement is 10 years for a 
surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to be paid for life to the 
spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

LASERS allows for the payment of ad hoc permanent benefit increases, also known as 
cost-of- living adjustments (COLAs) that are funded through investment earnings when 
recommended by the Board of Trustees and approved by the State Legislature. 

Contributions 

Contribution requirements of active employees are governed by Title 11 of the Louisiana 
Revised Statutes (LA R.S. 11:101-11:104) by the Public Retirement System's Actuarial 
Committee (PRSAC). Substantially all of the District's employees participating in 
LASERS are included in the Regular Plan. Members are required by state statute to 
contribute 7.5% of their annual covered salaries if hired before July 1, 2006 (closed plan) 
and 8.0% of their annual covered salaries if hired after July 1, 2006, and the District is 
required to make employer contributions based on an actuarially determined rate. The 
employer contribution rates for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was 40.4% 
and 39.5% of annual covered payroll, respectively. The District's contributions paid to 
LASERS for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were $534,693 and $511,263, 
respectively. 
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(10) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District reported a liability for its participation in 
LASERS of $3,780,170 and $4,301,417, respectively, for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability of the Systern. The net pension liability was rneasured as ofJune 30, 
2023 and 2022 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. The District's proportion of 
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's ton-term share of the 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
ernployers, actuarially deterrnined. At the June 30, 2023 rneasurernent date, the District's 
proportion in LASERS was 0.05648%, which was an decrease of 0.00042% from its 
proportion rneasured at June 30, 2022. 

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized pension expense of 
$398,713 and $386,456 for its participation in LASERS. 

At June 30, 2024, the District reported defetTed outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions frorn the following sources for its participation in 
LASERS: 

 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflow 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 81,830 

 

Changes of assumptions 

  

Net difterence between projected and actual 
earnin on pension plan investments 21,610 

 

Changes in proportion between 
employer conmbutions and proprotionate share 
ofcontramtions 10,223 263,505 

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 534,693 

  

$ 648,356 $ 263,505 
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(10) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources for its participation in 
LASERS: 

 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflow 
ofResources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 11,731 

 

Changes of assumptions 78,206 

 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investrnents 346,464 

 

Changes in proportion between 
employer contributions and proprotionate share 
of contributions 100,988 491,207 

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 511,263 

  

$ 1,048,652 $ 491,207 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date for LASERS of $534,693 will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability during the year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense (benefit) as follows: 

Year ended June 30 

 

2025 $(138,807) 
2026 (147,663) 
2027 186,185 
2028 (49,557) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation for LASERS was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in 
the measurement: 

Inflation 2.30% 
Salary Increases 2.6% - 13.8% 
Investment Rate of Return 7.25%, net of investment expenses 
Dates of Experience Study 2014 - 2018 
Mortality Rates RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Tables projected to 2018 

RP-2000 Disabled Tables with no projection 
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(10) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

The long-term expected rates of return on pension plan investments of LASERS were 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and 
an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The expected real rates of 
return of LASERS for each major asset class as of the June 30, 2023 measurement date 
are summarized in the following table: 

Expected Long Term Real Rate of Return 
Asset Class 2023 

Cash 0.80% 
Domestic Equity 4.45% 

International Equity 5.44% 
Domestic Fixed Income 2.04% 

International Fixed Income 5.33% 
Alternative Investments 8.19% 
Total Fund 5.75% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability of LASERS was 7.25%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer 
contributions from participating employers will be made at contractually required rates, 
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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(10) PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to 
Changes in the Discount Rate  

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability of 
LASERS as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 using the current discount rate of 7.25% and 
7.25%, respectively, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point 
lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

District's Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability 

1.00% Current 1.00% 

Decrease Discount Rate Increase 

 

6.25% 7.25% 8.25% 

June 30, 2024 

$ 4,949,821 $ 3,780,170 $ 2,789,229 Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

District's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability 

1.00% Current 1.00% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 

 

6.25% 7.25% 8.25% 
June 30, 2023 

$ 5,412,439 $ 4,301,417 $ 3,288,328 Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued financial report for LASERS. 

(11) DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The Louisiana Public Employees Deferred Compensation Plan (the Plan) was adopted by 
the Louisiana Deferred Compensation Commission effective September 15, 1982. The Plan 
was established in accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes 42:1301 through 42:1308 
and section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, for the purpose of 
providing supple-mental retirement income to employees by permitting them to defer a 
portion of compensation to be invested and distributed in accordance with the terms of the 
Plan. 

All compensation deferred under the Plan, all property and rights purchased with such 
amounts, and all income attributable to such amounts, property or rights, shall be held for 
the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. 

35 



ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(11) DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The rnaxirnurn arnount of compensation which rnay be deferred during a calendar year 
shall not exceed $23,000 and $22,500 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 

The District makes contributions to the Plan on behalf of each employee based on the 
following schedule: 

Years of Service Monthly Contribution 
0-2 $ 30 
3-5 60 
6-9 90 
10-14 120 
15 and over 150 

Contributions to the Plan by ernployees totaled $108,010 and $101,927 for the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Contributions to the Plan by the District totaled 
$45,120 and $44,075 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

(12) COMMITNIENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

On December 29, 2020, the District entered into an amendrnent of a cooperative 
endeavor agreement with the Board of Commissioners of the Port of New Orleans (the 
Board). The Board represents and warrants that it rnust acquire the Non-VDP Property to 
develop the Project, and it has agreed both to make certain payments to the District and to 
acquire the Non-VDP Property if it intends to move forward with the Project. 
Consequently, as part of the First Closing on the Amendment Effective Date, the District 
and the Board will execute the Non-VDP Property and Payment Agreement in the form 
that has been approved by the Parties (when executed, the "Non-VDP Property and 
Payrnent Agreement") in which the Board agrees that if it intends to move forward with 
the Project, then on or before the Second Closing Deadline, it will purchase the Non-VDP 
Property and pay the District the sum of $8,000,000, in consideration for this agreement 
to sell by the District, the District's sale to the Board of the Non-VDP Property, the 
District's resulting need to construct additional facilities to replace the berths and 
facilities at the VDP Property and the Non-VDP Property, the cancellation of the 
District's Repurchase Option (as defined below), the District's agreement to cooperate 
reasonably and in good faith with the Board, the Districts agreement not to compete, and 
the Districts reasonable assistance with the Parish and the community (this sum of 
$8,000,000 is the "Non-VDP Property and Development Payinent"), the District agrees to 
sell the Non-VDP Property to the Board upon the Board's payinent of the Non-VDP 
Property and Developrnent Payment and otherwise on the terms set out for the Second 
Closing in the Non-VDP Property and Payment Agreement. 
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As part of the Fourth Amendment to the agreement, because the District has not yet 
obtained a consent to assignment frorn the landlord under the Meraux lease as provided in 
the Second Amendment, the parties agreed to, among, other assitmrnents, to reduce the 
Non-VDP Property and Developrnent Payrnent frorn $8,000,000 to $7,000,000 and to 
provide for a Third Closing at which the Board will rnake the $1,000,000 Assignment 
Payment and the District will convey its rights and interests under the Meraux lease to the 
Board. As part of the Second Closing, the District purchased frorn the Board 26 acres of 
land for the price of $669,700, and this price was paid at the Second Closing, by offset 
against the Non-VDP Property and Development Payment. The total payment of 
$6,330,081 was rnade on January 19, 2023 and is recorded in the accompanying financial 
staternents. 

Sirnultaneously, on the amendment effective date, the Board and the District executed a 
new lease in the form that has been approved by both Parties (the "New Lease") pursuant 
to which the Board leased to the District Berth 1 and Berth 2 of the VPD Property as 
shown on Exhibit "C" to the New Lease, together with the Violet Buoys (as defined in 
the New Lease) (collectively, the "Leased Premises") for a five-year term commencing 
on the Arnendment Effective Date, for an annual rental of $540,000 per year 
commencing on the Amendment Effective Date (but subject to the provisions below), 
under which the District will have the right to sublease its rights and obligations in order 
to allow AT to continue operations of the Leased Premises, and otherwise on the terms 
and conditions set out in the New Lease, and a Notice of Lease with respect to the New 
Lease in the form that has been approved by both Parties (the "Notice of New Lease"). 

The District and AT have executed a Ninth Amendment to Amended, Restated, and 
Superseding Lease in the forrn that has been approved by both Parties (when executed, 
the "AT Sublease") pursuant to which the District and AT have arnended the Base Master 
Lease (as defined in the AT Sublease) first to terrninate the Base Master Lease with 
respect to all parts of the VDP Propeity, then to sublease the Leased Premises to AT for a 
five-year tern-1, in other aspects consistent with the terrns and conditions of the New 
Lease, and on the terrns set out in the Ninth Arnendrnent. 

Notwithstanding the District's obligation to pay the rent set out in the New Lease, and as 
rnore fully set out in the New Lease, the rent will be abated during the Feasibility Period 
(this abated rent in the amount of $1,080,000 is the "Deferred Rent"), and if the Board 
intends to rnove forward with the developrnent of the Project at the VDP Property or 
otherwise acquires the Non-VDP Property (and provided that the Non-VDP Property and 
Payrnent Agreement has not been terminated by reason of the District's default), then the 
Deferred Rent and the rent for the rernaining three (3) years of the terrn of the New 
Lease, frorn January 1, 2023 through Decernber 31, 2025, shall be abated and shall not be 
payable as further consideration for the District's obligations as set forth in the Second 
Amendment. As a result of this transaction, $810,000 of rent expense and corresponding 
deferred rent payable is abated in the accornpanying financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2023. 
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However, if the Board does not intend to move forward with the development of the 
Project or does not acquire the Non-VDP Property (other than by reason of the District's 
default), then the rent payable under the New Lease will be payable in accordance with 
the New Lease comrnencing January 1, 2023, and that rent shall be paid by the District to 
the Board monthly on the first day of each rnonth until the expiration or sooner 
termination of the New Lease. In addition, on the expiration or sooner terrnination of the 
New Lease, including a termination by the Board by reason of a District default that 
continues beyond the notice and cure period provided in the New Lease but not including 
a termination by reason of the Board's default, the Deferred Rent shall be paid by the 
District to the Board on such expiration or sooner terrnination date. 

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District incurred $45,719 and 
$85,178 of legal expenses related to the expropriation, respectively. 

(13) PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP 

The District has contracted with a private party to operate a portion of its facilities. 
During, the year ended June 30, 2024, construction of a parking facility was completed 
and placed in service effective July 1, 2023. Managernent has deterrnined that this 
arrangement to construct and operate the parking facility qualifies as a public private 
partnership arrangement under GASB Statement No. 94, as the District retains ownership 
of the leased property while the tenant is responsible for the operation and maintenance 
of the property. The operator of the District's facilities performs irnprovernents to 
existing capital assets of the District when necessary. These improvements are capitalized 
as they are made and subject to depreciation based on existing policies for similar capital 
assets. The difference between the initial capital asset recognized and any associated 
liability, if any, is reported as a deferred inflow of resources and is recognized in incorne 
in a systematic and rational rnanner based on the terms of the arrangernent. 

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the operator cornpleted irnprovernents totaling 
$1,219,097, which are recorded as capital assets in the accornpanying financial 
statements as described in Note 4. Depreciation on these improvements totaled $60,955 
for the year ended June 30, 2024. The District recognized a corresponding deferred 
inflow of resources, which is being amortized over the terrn of the arrangernent. 

(14) USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported arnounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staternents, and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
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(15) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The GASB has issued Staternent No. 101 "Cornpensated Absences". The prirnary objective 
of this Staternent is to better rneet the information needs of financial staternent users by 
updating the recognition and rneasurernent guidance for cornpensated absences. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2023. The District plans to adopt this Statement as applicable by the effective date. 

(16) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 18, 2024, which is the 
date the financial staternents were available to be issued. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE TEN YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

    

District's 

  

District's District's 

 

Proportionate Share Plan Fiduciary 

 

Proportion Proportionate 

 

of the Net Pension Net Position as 

 

of the Net Share of the District's Liability as a % of a % of the 

Fiscal Pension Net Pension Covered ofCovered Total Pension 

Year* Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability 

LASERS: 

     

2024 0.0565% $ 3, 780,170 $ 1,265,502 298.71% 68.40% 

2023 0.0569% 4,301,417 1,293,917 332.43% 63.70% 

2022 0.0678% 3,730,870 1,376,498 271.04% 72.80% 

2021 0.0643% 5,317,791 1,299,429 409.24% 58.00% 

2020 0.0651% 4,712,671 1,238,026 380.66% 62.90% 

2019 0.0612% 4,174,477 1,167,014 357.71% 64.30% 

2018 0.0586% 4,122,854 1,114,374 369.97% 62.50% 

2017 0.0561% 4,408,266 1,045,284 421.73% 57.70% 

2016 0.0527% 3,587,932 994,779 360.68% 62.70% 

2015 0.0527% 3,295,649 1,162,778 283.43% 65.00% 

*The arnounts presented for each fiscal year were deterrnined as of the prior fiscal year. 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE TEN YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

  

Contributions 
in Relation to 

  

Contnbutions 
as a 

 

Contractually Contractually Contnbution Employer's Percentage 
Fiscal Required Required Deficiency Covered ofCovered 
Year Contribution Contnbution (Excess) Payroll Payroll 

LASERS: 

     

2024 $ 534,693 $ 534,693 $ - $ 1,294,656 41.30% 
2023 511,263 511,263 - 1,265,503 40.40% 
2022 511,097 511,097 0 1,293,917 39.50% 
2021 551,975 551,975 - 1,376,498 40.10% 
2020 528,868 528,868 (0) 1,299,429 40.70% 
2019 469,212 469,212 (0) 1,238,026 37.90% 
2018 442,298 448,925 (6,627) 1,167,014 38.47% 
2017 398,946 405,704 (6,758) 1,114,374 36.41% 
2016 388,846 392,020 (3,174) 1,045,284 37.50% 
2015 368,068 368,068 - 994,779 37.00% 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 
FOR THE SEVEN YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

Districfs Difference District's 

Beginning Between Expected Ending 

Fiscal Total OPEB Service and Actual Changes in Total OPEB 

Year* Liability Costs Interest Experience Assumptions Contributions Liability 

2024 $ 1,926,108 $ 55,255 $ 80,318 (6,632) $ 93,853 $ (35,568) $ 2,113,334 

2023 3,341,010 119,874 74,821 (533,580) (1,018,256) (57,761) 1,926,108 

2022 2,832,060 92,384 77,019 84,365 313,569 (58,387) 3,341,010 

2021 2,615,231 89,350 74,587 94,518 21,264 (62,890) 2,832,060 

2020 2,793,865 121,873 85,962 71,858 (395,650) (62,677) 2,615,231 

2019 2,447,902 117,616 79,541 310,994 (113,244) (48,944) 2,793,865 

2018 2,485,894 127,360 70,160 

 

(186,568) (48,944) 2,447,902 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be presented as they become 
available. 

*The arnounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year. 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE SEVEN YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

Contributions 
as a Percentage 

OfCovered 

Employee 
Payroll 

Total OPEB 

Liability as a 
Percentage of 

Covered 

Employee 
Payroll 

Actuarially District's Contnbution Covered 
Fiscal Estimated Actml Deficiency Employee 
Year Contrbutions Contrbutions (Excess) Payroll 

20?4 $ 36,507 49,289 $ (12,782) $ 1,294,656 3.81% 163.24% 
2073 34,823 51,568 (16,745) 1,265,502 4.07% 152.20% 

2022 57,133 56,800 333 1,293,917 4.39% 258.21% 

2021 61,197 57,168 4,029 1,376,498 4.15% 205.74% 

2070 61,283 61,197 86 1,299,429 4.71% 201.26% 
2019 53,029 61,283 (8,254) 1,238,026 4.95% 225.67% 

2018 48,944 53,029 (4,085) 1,167,014 4.54% 209.76% 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be presented as 
they becorne available. 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023  

(1) SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET 
PENSION LIABILITY 

This schedule reflects the participation of the District's employees in Louisiana State 
Employees' Retirement System, and its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the 
proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its covered payroll, and 
the plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability. The employers' 
net pension liability is the liability of the District's employees for benefits provided through 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System. Covered payroll is the payroll of all 
employees that are provided with benefits through the plan. The amounts in the schedule 
for each fiscal year were determined as the prior fiscal year ended. 

(2) SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

The difference between actuarially determined employer contributions and employer 
contributions received, and the percentage of employer contributions received to covered 
payroll, is presented in this schedule. The amounts presented in the schedule were 
determined as of the end of each fiscal year. 

(3) SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

This schedule reflects the participation of the District's employees in the State of 
Louisiana Postemployment Benefits Plan and changes in the total other postemployment 
liability. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 to pay related benefits. 

(4) CHANGES OF BENEFIT TERMS 

During the reporting period 2017, a 1.5% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) was 
granted by LASERS. There were no changes in benefit terms for any of the remaining 
years presented. 

(5) CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 

Pension Plan 

Amounts reported in the actuary valuations dated June 30, 2018 and 2017 for LASERS 
reflect an adjustment in the discount rate, inflation rate, and salary increases used to value 
the projected benefit payments attributed to past periods of service. Other changes were 
as follows: 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023  

(5) CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Pension Plan (Continued) 

Valuation Date June 30. 2023 June 30. 2022 June 30. 2021 June 30, 2019 June 30. 2018 June 30, 2017 Rule 30. 2016 

Investment Rate of 

Retum 
7.25% 7.40'i, 7.55% 7.60% 7.65% 7.70% 7. 75% 

Mffition Rate 2 30% 2 30% 2.30% 2.50% 2 75% 2.75% 3 00% 

Expected Reman ntc 

e Lives Sery ic  
2 years 2 vears 2 years 2 \'ears 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years 

Salap, creases 2.6% - 13.8% 2 6°' 13.8'?b 2.6"A, - 13 8% 2.8'.'b - 14 0% 2 8% - 14.3% 2.8% - 14 3% 3 0% - 14.5% 

Mortality Rate - 

Actbe & Retired 

Members 

Mortality rates 

based on the RP- 

2014 mortality 

tables 

Mortahty rates 

based on the RP- 

2014 mortality 

tabks 

Mortahty rates 

based on the RP- 

2014 mortality 

tables 

Mortality rates 

based on the RP- 

2014 mortality 

tables 

Mortahty rates 

based on the RP- 

2000 mortality 

tables 

Mortahty rates 

based on the RP- 

2000 mortality 

tables 

Mortality rates 

based on the RP-

 

2000 mortality 

tabks 

Termination, 

. a nd disability' 

retirement 

assumptions 

Projected on a 5 

year (2014-20181 

experience study 

Projected on a 5 

vear (2014-2018) 

experience study 

Projected on a 5 

year 12014-2018) 

experience study 

Projected on a 5 

year (2014-20181 

experience study 

Projected on a 5 

year (2009-2013) 

experience study 

Projected on a 5 

year (2000-2013) 

experience study 

Projected on a 5 

Near (2000-201.3) 

experience study 

OPEB Plan 

For the July 1, 2023 valuation, the discount rate changed from 4.09% to 4.13%. Baseline 
per capita costs were updated to reflect 2023 clairns and enrollment. Plan claims and 
premiurns increased less than expected, which decreased the Plan's liability. 

For the July 1, 2022 valuation, the discount rate changed frorn 2.18% to 4.09%. Baseline 
per capita costs were updated to reflect 2022 clairns and enrollrnent. Medical plan 
election percentages were updated based on the coverage elections of recent retirees. 

For the July 1, 2021 valuation, the discount rate changed frorn 2.66% to 2.18%. Baseline 
per capita costs were updated to reflect 2021 clairns and enrollrnent for the prescription 
drug costs and retiree contributions were updated based on 2022 prerniums. 2021 medical 
clairns and enrollrnent experience were reviewed but not included in the projection of 
expected 2022 plan costs. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the actuary does not believe 
this experience is reflective of what can be expected in future years. The salary scale 
assurnptions were revised for the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System. 

For the July 1, 2020 valuation, the discount rate changed frorn 2.79% to 2.66%. Baseline 
per capita costs (PCCs) were updated to reflect 2020 clairns and enrollrnent for the 
prescription dnig costs and retiree contributions were updated based on 2021 premiums. 
2020 rnedical claims and enrollrnent experience were reviewed but not included in the 
projection of expected 2021 plan costs. Due to the COVID-19 pandernic, the actuaiy does 
not believe this experience is reflective of what can be expected in future years. The 
salary scale assumptions were revised for the Louisiana State Ernployees' Retirement 
Systern. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
(STATE OF LOUISIANA) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

(5) CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

For the July 1, 2019 valuation, the discount rate was adjusted to 2.79%. Additionally, per 
capita costs and premiums were updated, certain demographic assumptions were revised, 
high cost excise tax was removed, and life insurance contributions were adjusted. 

For the July 1, 2018 valuation, the discount rate has decreased from 3.13% to 2.98%. 
Baseline per capita costs were updated to reflect 2018 claims and enrollment and retiree 
contributions were updated based on 2019 premiums. The impact of the High Cost Excise 
Tax was revisited, reflecting updated plan premiums. The mortality assumption for the 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System was updated from the RP- 2014 Healthy 
Annuitant and Employee tables for males and females with generational projections using 
projection scale MP-2017 to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant and Employee tables for 
males and females using projection scale MP-2018. 
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Schedule "5" 

ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
CHALMETTE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023  

Executive Director: Drew Heaphy 

  

2024 

 

2023 

Salary 
Benefits - insurance 
Benefits - retirement (State Deferred Compensation Plan) 
Vehicle provided by government 
Per diem 
Reimbursements 
Travel 
Membership dues 
Registration fees 
Cell phone allowance 

Total compensation, benefits, and other payments 

$ 222,696 
22,992 
15,900 
12,300 

593 
18,033 
9,889 
2,340 
4,265 

960 

$ 222,696 
22,683 
15,150 
10,932 

403 
3,916 

11,864 
3,340 
4,875 

960 

 

309,968 

 

296,819 

    

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

4227 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 70119 

ericksenkrentel.com  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
Chalmette, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the St. Bemard Port, Harbor and Terminal District (the District), which comprise 
the consolidated statement of financial position as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon November 18, 
2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the 
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTEL 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
Chalmette, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the boards of 
commissioners, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal and state awarding agencies and 
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the 
Legislative Auditor as a public document 

November 18, 2024 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Certified Public Accountants 
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ERICKSEN KRENTEL 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

4227 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 70119 

ericksenkrentel.com  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
Chalmette, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District's (the District) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The District's major federal programs are identified 
in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
applicable to the District's federal programs. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
Chalmette, Louisiana 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Coinpliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the oven-ide of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of 
the report on compliance about the District's compliance with the requirements of each major 
federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

444 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
Chalmette, Louisiana 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

November 18, 2024 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

4e-1-f ¿f 

Certified Public Accountants 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ 
Program Title 

Federal 
AL 

Number 

Federal 
Disbursements/ 
Expenditures 

Department of Homeland Security 

  

Pass-throughfrom the State of Louisiana 
Port Security Grant Program 97.056 $ 595,863 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 137,831 

Total Department of Homeland Security 

 

733,694 

Department of Transportation 
20.933 2,624,500 National Infrastructure Investments 

Total Department of Transportation 

 

2,624,500 

Total Federal Assistance Expended 

 

$ 3 358.194 

(See Independent Auditors' Report) 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024  

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION  

The accornpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the 
federal grant activity of the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District under 
prograrns of the federal governrnent for the year ended June 30, 2024. The inforrnation in 
the schedule is presented in accordance with the requirernents of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifbrin Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements fbr Federal Awards (Uniforrn Guidance). Because the schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and 
Terminal District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes 
in net assets, or cash flows of the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District. 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Accrued and Deferred Reimbursement 

Various reirnbursernent procedures are used for federal awards received by the St. 
Bernard Port, Harbor and Terrninal District. Consequently, timing differences between 
expenditures and program reimbursernents can exist at the beginning and end of the year. 

Pavments to Subrecipients  

There were no payments to subrecipients for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 

(3) INDIRECT COST RATE  

The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District has elected not to use the 10% de 
rninirnis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

54 



ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024  

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The independent auditors' report expresses an unrnodified opinion on the financial 
staternents of the St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terrninal District. 

2. No significant deficiencies or rnaterial weaknesses in internal control relating to the audit 
of the financial statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal 
Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the St. Bernard 
Port, Harbor and Terminal District were reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

4. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the rnajor 
federal award programs are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance 
for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with 
the Uniforrn Guidance. 

5. The auditors' report on cornpliance for the rnajor federal award programs for the St. 
Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District expresses an unmodified opinion. 

6. There were no audit findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 
200.516(a). 

7. A rnanagernent letter was not issued for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

8. The prograrn tested as rnajor prograrn was: 

AL# 
National Infrastnicture Investrnents 20.933 

9. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B prograrns was $750,000. 

10. The St. Bernard Parish Port, Harbor and Terrninal District was deterrnined to be a low-
risk auditee. 

B. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

There were no findings related to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO MAJOR FEDERAL 
AWARD PROGRAMS 

There were no findings related to rnajor federal award prograrns for the year ended June 30, 
2024. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024  

SECTION I - FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

There were no findings related to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

SECTION II - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO MAJOR FEDERAL 
AWARD PROGRAMS 

There were no findings related to major federal award programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

SECTION III - MANAGEMENT LETTER 

A management letter was not issued for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Commissioners and Management 
St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District 
Chalmette, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the year ended June 30, 2024. The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District's 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the AUPs. 

The St. Bernard Port, Harbor and Terminal District (the District) has agreed to and acknowledged 
that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which 
is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the year ended 
June 30, 2024. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures 
performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the 
needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the 
procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are attached in Schedule "1." 

We were engaged by the District to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were 
not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported 
to you. 

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified 
in the SAUP's, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

November 18, 2024 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

 

 Certified Public Accountants 



Schedule "1" 

ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

WRITTEN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Procedures: Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that 
they address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds 
and the entity's operations: 

b) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

c) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure cornpliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

d) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

e) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

0 Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time 
and attendance records, including leave and overtirne worked, and (3) approval process 
for employee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

g) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
terrns and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

i) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fUel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) 
how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4) required approvers of staternents, and (5) rnonitoring card usage (e.g., 
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) systern to 
rnonitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that docurnentation is 
rnaintained to dernonstrate that all ernployees and officials were notified of any changes 
to the entity's ethics policy. 



Schedule "1" (Continued) 

ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

WRITTEN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

k) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirernents, (3) debt reserve requirernents, and (4) debt service requirernents. 

1) Information Technology Disaster Recovely/Basiness ContinahT, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systerns, (5) tirnely 
application of all available systern and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of 
personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

rn) Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) 
agency responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual ernployee training, and (3) annual 
reporting. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedure. 

BOARD OR FINANCE COMMITTEE 

2. Procedures:  Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as 
well as the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent docurnent in effect 
during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on 
a frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or 
other equivalent docurnent. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether 
the minutes referenced or included rnonthly budget-to-actual cornparisons on the 
general fund, quarterly budget-to-actual, at a rninirnurn, on proprietary funds, and 
semi-annual budget- to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. 
Alternatively, for those entities reporting on the not-for-profit accounting rnodel, 
observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to public 
funds if those public funds cornprised rnore than 10% of the entity's collections 
during the fiscal period. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the 
unassigned fund balance in the general fiind. If the general fund had a negative 
ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the 
rninutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a 
formal plan to elirninate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

d) Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the 
progress of resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action 
plan at each rneeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 



Schedule "1" (Continued) 

ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

BOARD OR FINANCE COMMITTEE(CONTINUED)  

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applyint4 the procedure. 

BANK RECONCILIA TIONS 

3. Procedures:  Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period frorn rnanagernent 
and management's representation that the listing is cornplete. Ask management to identify 
the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly 
select five additional accounts (or all accounts if less than five). Randomly select one month 
frorn the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank staternent and 
reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within two months of the 
related staternent closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged). 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a rnernber of rnanagernent/board rnernber who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
within one month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); and 

c) Management has docurnentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for rnore than 12 rnonths frorn the staternent closing date, if 
applicable. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedure. 

COLLECTIONS (EXCLUDING ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANFERS) 

4. Procedure:  Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for 
cash/checks/money orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select five deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than five). 

5. Procedures:  For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and 
rnanagernent's representation that the listing is cornplete. Randornly select one collection 
location for each deposit site (i.e. five collection locations for five deposit sites), obtain and 
inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies 
or procedures, inquire of ernployees about their job duties) at each collection location, and 
observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/rnaking 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
docurnentation (e.g. pre-nurnbered receipts) to the deposit. 



Schedule "1" (Continued) 

ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

COLLECTIONS (CONTINUED)  

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

d) The ernployee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible 
for collecting cash, unless another ernployee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

6. Procedure:  Obtain from rnanagernent a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft 
covering all employees who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy 
for theft was enforced during the fiscal period. 

7. Procedures:  Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the five bank accounts selected 
for procedure #3 under "Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date 
chronologically if no deposits were rnade on the dates randornly selected and randornly select 
a deposit if multiple deposits are rnade on the sarne day). Obtain supporting docurnentation 
for each of the ten deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-nurnbered. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-nurnbered receipts, systern reports, and other related collection 
docurnentation to the deposit slip. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank staternent. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than ten miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank staternent to the general ledger. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures. 

NON-PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS (EXCLUDING CARD PURCHASES/PAYMENTS, 
TRA VEL REIMBURSEMENTS, AND PETTY CASH PURCHASES)  

8. Procedure:  Obtain a listing of locations that process payrnents for the fiscal period and 
rnanatzernent's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all 
locations if less than five). 



Schedule "1" (Continued) 

ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NON-PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS (EXCL UDING CARD PURCHASES/PAYMENTS, 
TRA VEL REIMBURSEMENTS, AND PETTY CASH PURCHASES)(CONTINUED)  

9. Procedures: For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees 
involved with non-payroll purchasing and payrnent functions. Obtain written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and 
procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two ernployees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase, and placing an order/making the purchase. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payrnents to vendors. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payrnents is prohibited frorn adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes 
to vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives 
the signed checks to an employee to rnail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

e) Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic 
disbursernent (release) of funds, whether through autornated clearinghouse (ACH), 
electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or sorne other electronic means. 

10. Procedures:  For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll 
disbursernent transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
rnanagernent's representation that the population is cornplete. Randornly select five 
disbursernents for each location, obtain supporting docurnentation for each transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursernent rnatched the related original itemized invoice, and that 
supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice were 
received by the entity. 

b) Observe that the disbursernent docurnentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

11. Using the entity's rnain operating, account and the rnonth selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all 
electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was 

a) Approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the 
entity's policy, 



Schedule "1" (Continued) 

ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NON-PAYR()LL DISBURSEMENTS (EXCL UDING CARD PURCHASES/PAYMENTS, 
TRA VEL REIMBURSEMENTS, AND PETTY CASH PURCHASES) (CONTINUED)  

b) Approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If 
no electronic payrnents were made from the main operating account during the rnonth 
selected the practitioner should select an alternative rnonth and/or account for testing that 
does include electronic disbursements. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures. 

CREDIT CARDS/DEBIT CARDS/FUEL CARDS/PURCHASE CARDS (CARDS) 

12. Procedures:  Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, 
fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card nurnbers and the 
names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

13. Procedures:  Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select five cards (or all 
cards if less than five) that were used during the fiscal period. Randoinly select one monthly 
stateinent or combined stateinent for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly 
bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or cornbined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing 
(or electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

14. Procedures:  Using the rnonthly staternents or combined stateinents selected under #13 
above, excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 
10) from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each 
card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it is 
supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) 
written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) docurnentation of the 
individuals participating in ineals (for ineal charges only). For rnissing receipts, the 
practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a 
compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that 
is subject to increased scrutiny. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

TRAVEL AND TRAVEL-RELATED EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENTS (EXCLUDING 
CARD TRANSACTIONS)  

15. Procedures: Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense 
reimbursements during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or 
general ledger is complete. Randomly select five reimbursements, obtain the related expense 
reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as 
well as the supporting documentation. For each of the five reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#lh). 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Results: No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedure. 

CONTRACTS 

16. Procedures: Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional 
services, materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or 
renewed during the fiscal period. Obtain management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Randomly select five contracts (or all contracts if less than five) from the listing, 
excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g. if approval is required for any amendment was approval 
documented). 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

CONTRACTS(CONTINUED)  

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the five contracts, obtain 
the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terrns, and observe that the 
invoice and related payrnent agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedure. 

PAYROLL AND PERSONNEL 

17. Procedure:  Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listinv, is cornplete. Randornly select five employees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized 
salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

18. Procedures:  Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the five 
ernployees or officials selected under #17 above, obtain attendance records and leave 
documentation for the pay period, and: 

a) Observe that all selected ernployees or officials docurnented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.tz., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to 
earn leave and do not document their attendance and leave. However, if the official is 
earning leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her 
daily attendance and leave.) 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 

d) Observe that the rate paid to the ernployees or officials agree to the authorized salaiy/pay 
rate found within the personnel file. 

19. Procedures:  Obtain a listing of those ernployees or officials that received terrnination 
payments during the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete 
Randornly select two ernployees or officials, obtain related docurnentation of the hours and 
pay rates used in tnanatzement's terrnination payrnent calculations and the entity policy on 
termination payrnents. Agree the hours to the ernployee or officials' leave records, agree the 
pay rates to the ernployee or officials' authorized pay rates in the employee or officials' 
personnel files, and agree the terrnination payment to entity policy. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

PAYROLL AND PERSONNEL(CONTINUED) 

20. Procedures:  Obtain rnanagernent's representation that ernployer and ernployee portions of 
third-party payroll related arnounts (e.g. payroll taxes, retirernent contributions, health 
insurance premiums, uarnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, 
and any associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures. 

ETHICS 

21. Procedures:  Using the five randornly selected employees/officials frorn procedure #17 under 
"Payroll and Personnel" above obtain ethics documentation frorn managernent, and: 

a) Observe that the docurnentation dernonstrates each employee/official cornpleted one hour 
of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

b) Observe that the entity rnaintains docurnentation which dernonstrates each ernployee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, 
as applicable. 

c) Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required 
by R.S. 42:1170. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedure. 

DEB T SER VICE 

22. Procedure:  Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instrurnents issued during the 
fiscal period and rnanagernent's representation that the listing is cornplete. Select all debt 
instruments on the listing, obtain supporting docurnentation, and observe that State Bond 
Commission approval was obtained for each debt instnirnent issued as required by Article 
VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

23. Procedure:  Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, 
inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and 
payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt 
covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by 
the debt covenants). 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures. 
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ST. BERNARD PORT, HARBOR AND TERMINAL DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

FRA UD NOTICE 

24. Procedure:  Obtain a listing, of misappropriations of public funds and assets during, the fiscal 
period and rnanagernent's representation that the listing is cornplete. Select all 
misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity 
reported the rnisappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the Organization attorney of 
the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

25. Procedure:  Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice 
required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the reporting of rnisappropriation, fraud, waste, or 
abuse of public funds. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DISASTER RECOVERY/BUSINESS CONTINUITY 

26. Procedures:  Perforrn the following procedures: 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent docurnentation that it has backed up its critical 
data (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical 
data) and observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If backups are stored 
on a physical medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are encrypted 
before being transported. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity's rnost recent docurnentation that it has tested/verified that 
its backups can be restored (if no written docurnentation, inquire of personnel responsible 
for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification 
was successfully perforrned within the past 3 rnonths. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity's cornputers currently in use, and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is cornplete. Randornly select 5 cornputers 
and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current 
and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system 
software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

d) Randomly select 5 terrninated ernployees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) 
using the list of terminated employees obtained in procedure #19. Observe evidence that 
the selected tenninated employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

e) Using the 5 randoinly selected einployees/officials frorn procedure #17 "Payroll and 
Personnel", obtain cybersecurity training documentation from management, and observe 
that the documentation demonstrates that the following, employees/officials with access to 
the agency's information technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as 
required by R.S. 42:1267. The requirernents are as follows: 

• Hired before June 9, 2020 — completed the training; and 
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• Hired on or after June 9, 2020 — completed the training within 30 days of initial 
service or employment. 

Results:  We performed the procedures and discussed the results with rnanagement. 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

27. Procedures:  Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #17 under 
"Payroll and Personnel" above, obtain sexual harassrnent training documentation frorn 
management, and observe that the documentation dernonstrates each employee/official 
completed at least one hour of sexual harassrnent training during the calendar year. 

28. Procedure:  Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and cornplaint 
procedure on its website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity 
does not have a website). 

29. Procedure:  Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassrnent report for the current fiscal period, 
observe that the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that it includes the 
applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

a) Nurnber and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirernents; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

c) Nurnber of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassrnent occurred; 

d) Nurnber of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassrnent resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each cornplaint. 

Results:  No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures. 
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